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6.  t �oseph�s  chool �nd �onvent
In 1919 a house in Perry Street belonging to the 

Ainsworth family was purchased with the aim 

of establishing a convent and school. Initially, 

classes were held in the old wooden church of 

St Lawrence O’Toole. In the 1920s an annexe 

was built which was used for boarders. In 1936 

boarding was discontinued and the bedrooms 

converted to classrooms. The Sisters of St 

Joseph left the convent in 1965 and the teaching 

is now done by lay teachers. In 1955 a new brick 

church – Our Lady of the Rosary – was built and 

the timber church was moved to Lennox Head.

It is impossible to talk about St Joseph’s 

without mentioning the ‘Pudding Factory’, also 

located in the church grounds. This was started 

in 1985 when Father McCarthy began making 

Christmas puddings to raise funds for the 

school. Now, Father Mac’s Heavenly Puddings 

are sold throughout Australia and the money 

raised goes to numerous charities.

The convent is listed by the National Trust, 

Australian Heritage Commission and Ballina 

Shire Council.

7. �he �ld �utter ��ctory
The NSW Creamery Butter Company opened 

with due ceremony on 21 November 1900 

before a gathering of about 600 people. The 

factory stood on 1½ acres of land purchased 

from Charles Bulwinkel and the most up-to-

date machinery available was installed.

The factory was successful for a time but 

got into financial difficulties towards the end of 

1903. In 1904 a group of local farmers formed 

a new co-operative, ‘Alstonville Co-operative 

Refrigerating and Carrying Company’.

In 1923 a brick building was built on to the 

front of the original structure.

The factory changed hands again in 1930 

when it was amalgamated with Norco and 

finally closed in 1947. Since then the building 

has been used to manufacture caravans, as a 

peanut processing factory and is currently a 

furniture store.

The building is heritage listed by Ballina 

Shire Council.

8. �umley ��r	

In 1901 it was originally called the Alstonville 

Recreation Reserve. In 1917 it was renamed after 

Councillor Clarence Lumley who had enlisted 

eighteen months previously and was killed in 

action.

In 1925 the Alstonville Bowling Club was 

opened in the park with one green. The bowling 

club now has other premises in Alstonville.

In 1930 a ladies croquet club was formed 

and in 1931 a clubhouse was erected and two 

lawns laid down in Lumley Park. The Governor 

of New South Wales, Sir Philip Game, officially 

opened the croquet lawns on 25 September 

1931.

In 1934 Ambrose Crawford and friends 

pressured council and approximately three 

acres were set apart as a ‘Preserve for Native 

Trees’. In 1970 the first permanent home for 

Richmond River Historical Society’s collection 

of transport and light industry exhibits was 

opened in the park.

All that remains of the Recreational Reserve 

is the old croquet clubhouse and part of the 

lawn.

9. �ormer �res
yteri�n �hurch

The old church building was the third church 

built by the Presbyterians in 1939. It replaced a 

previous wooden building erected on the same 

site in 1898.

In the 1990s the Presbyterians sold this 

building and it is now used by the Alstonville 

Dance Studio.

10. �inten
�r  hire �ouncil �h�m
ers

Originally built in 1908, the building was used 

as council chambers until 1977 when the shire 

amalgamated with Ballina. Over the years it 

has undergone many changes but inside the 

visitor can still see the original fire safes and 

the draughtsmen’s benches. Until mid-2007 the 

building was home to Kolinda Gallery.

The building is Ballina Shire Council heritage 

listed.

11. ��ddy �ugden �emori�l
Paddy Bugden is the only Victoria Cross recipient 

on the NSW Far North Coast. He was awarded 

the medal for his bravery in France during World 

War I. At the time of his enlistment Paddy was 

living with his mother and stepfather who were 

managing the Federal Hotel.

The site contains two memorials. A simple 

cross is thought to have been erected by 

members of the community in 1946. In 1999, on 

the eightieth anniversary of his death, a new 

memorial was unveiled by the Alstonville Rotary 

Club and the Alstonville RSL Sub-branch.

The designer and sculptor was Max Maxted 

from Nimbin.



The Commercial Bank building, 1908

12.  lstonville �howground
The Alstonville Agricultural Society held its first 

show in 1890 and the Temperance Hall was 

used as a pavilion. In 1892 an agricultural hall 

was erected at the showground and was used 

until 1981, when the present Community Centre 

was built by Ballina Shire Council.

In 1905 the ring was enlarged and seating 

provided around the ring. Memorial gates were 

later erected to honour the soldiers who made 

the supreme sacrifice in the First World War.

13. ��L �all
This building was originally built for the School 

of Arts committee in 1909 and was sited on the 

corner of High Street and the Bruxner Highway 

where a garage is today. It was decided in 1917 

to move the building closer to the town to 

encourage more membership. In 1933 the RSL 

was offered the task of managing the building 

and in 1950 the ownership of the hall was 

transferred to the sub-branch.

The Alstonville Plateau Historical Society 

holds its meetings in the hall on the third Sunday 

of the month at 2.00 pm.

14. �ank of �ew �outh �ales

This bank first opened in a rented cottage for 

a year and then in a brick shop for three more 

years.

In 1921/22 the Bank of New South Wales 

contracted Dayal Singh of Lismore to construct 

this building which was designed by Lismore 

architect, FJ Board. It housed a banking 

chamber and a residence for the manager and 

was officially opened on 13 April 1923.

During World War II this branch closed on 

20 November 1942. After the war the building 

was sold to the Gough family who lived in the 

residence but rented the banking chamber 

back to the bank where it operated until the 

1950s. The banking chamber was then used as 

a surgery by several doctors before becoming 

an opportunity shop for Maranoa Village for 

some years. The current owners lease portions 

of the building to various business people. The 

words ‘Bank of New South Wales’ can still be 

seen on the etched doors and the original bank 

safe is still in the old banking chamber.

15. ���	
��
��� �
�	 �����

Now a restaurant, this building was Alstonville’s 

fourth post office. The first post office was 

situated on the main road at Ocean View.

The second post office, built about 1888, was 

at the corner of the Bruxner Highway and Teven 

Road. In 1901 the residents asked that the post 

office be moved to the centre of town and the 

postmaster, Mr EO Hodgson, had premises built 

in 1902, west of the Federal Hotel. The fourth 

post office was erected and was occupied on 

13 February 1908 with Mr Hugh McBarron in 

charge.

Notable changes to the building occurred 

in the 1980s when the original entrance on the 

eastern side was filled in and a new entrance 

formed on the western corner.

In 1997 the post office operations were 

moved again to bigger premises in the Plaza 

Shopping Centre.

The old post office is listed as an item of 

heritage significance on the Ballina Local 

Environment Plan.

16. �ommercial �ank

This building is reputed to have been built in 

1896 by local butcher, John Daley. In 1901 he 

built the Federal Hotel and the family vacated 

the cottage and took up residence in the hotel.

In September 1902 the house was leased to 

the Commercial Banking Company of Sydney 

and was Alstonville’s first bank. At this time 

some changes were made to the building to 

accommodate the bank. In 1907 the bank 

purchased the property from John Daley’s 

widow.

The bank closed and in recent years the new 

owners, using information from the historical 

society archives, have painted the building the 

original bank colours.

The house is listed on the National Trust 

Register, Register of the National Estate and 

the Ballina Local Environment Plan and is now 

called ‘Freeborn House’.

17. �ederal �otel

This landmark opened on 1 June 1901, in the 

year of Federation – hence the name – and the 

licensee was John Daley, a local butcher.

The plans for the building were drawn up 

by Messrs Brown & Jolly, timber merchants, 

and it was built by Fred Cullen at a cost of £644. 

Sadly, Mr Daley had to sell the hotel in early 

1902 because of ill health. Among the other 

licensees were the Riley family, and Mr and Mrs 

R Evans who added a lounge and beer garden 

in 1951. The etched glass doors in the hallway 

are a feature.

The building is listed on the National Trust 

Register, Register of the National Estate and 

Ballina Local Environment Plan.

The Bank of New South Wales


